
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2023- 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length.
If you would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To
Address Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark
glasses) during meetings and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Recognize Marsha Worley for achieving Level II Court Clerk Certification.
 
(5) REPORTS   
 

(a) Lowry Fitness Center (Recreation and Tourism)
 
(6) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(7) CONSENT AGENDA   
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for the August 16, 2023, meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-099, accepting the proposal from
Generosity Services Inc for the Municipal Court Front Desk Renovation project in
accordance with Choice Partners Contract No. 23/016MR. (Municipal Court)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-100, authorizing a payment to South

Point Estates (Parcels 14, 16, and 18) for sanitary sewer easement. (Public Works)
 



 
(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-101, authorizing the purchase of two

(2) F250 regular cab service body trucks and one (1) regular cab F350 4x4 service body
with crane and lift gate truck from Silsbee Ford via TIPS Contract No. 200206. (Public
Works)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-102, awarding a contract for Bid No.

2023-436 Lift Station 30 Improvement Project. (Public Works)
 

(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-103, authorizing the submission of
nomination (s) for the Galveston County Appraisal District Board of Directors for
two-year terms, beginning January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025. (Management
Services)

 
(g) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-104, annual review and approval of the

City of Texas City's Investment Policy. (Finance)
 
(8) REGULAR ITEMS   
 

(a) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.
2023-28, amending Chapter 150 ‘Building Regulations; Construction,” related to
additional authority regarding substandard structures. (Fire Department)

 
(b) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-31, amending the fiscal year

2022-2023 budget to transfer funds from the General Fund (fund 101) to the Capital
Equipment Replacement Fund (fund 602). (Finance)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-32, amending the fiscal year

2022-2023 budget to appropriate funds for the purchase of EMS and Fire equipment
through a grant from Southeast Texas Housing Finance Corporation (SETH). (Finance)

 
(d) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-33, amending the fiscal year

2022-2023 budget to accept and appropriate the Community Development Block Grant
Mitigation funds for drainage improvements and shelter expansion projects. (Finance)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-34, amending the fiscal year

2022-2023 budget to appropriate funds from Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds established under the American Rescue Plan Act for exterior repairs at
the Moore Memorial Public Library. (Finance)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-35, amending the City's fiscal year

2022-2023 budget to appropriate funds to remodel the Municipal Court front desk
area. (Finance)

 
(9) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 



(10) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(11) ADJOURNMENT   
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER
IS STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door
sedan for anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's
Office before noon on Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS
POSTED ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, AT A PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2023, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO
POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF
SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Municipal Court Clerk Certification Presentation
Submitted For: Tammy Odom, Municipal Court  Submitted By: Tammy Odom, Municipal

Court
Department: Municipal Court

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Recognize Marsha Worley for achieving Level II Court Clerk Certification.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Recognize Marsha Worley for achieving Level II Court Clerk Certification.

RECOMMENDATION
Recognize Marsha Worley for achieving Level II Court Clerk Certification.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Lowry Fitness Center (Recreation and Tourism)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



City Commission Meeting
September 6, 2023

DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION & TOURISM

LOWRY FITNESS CENTER



MEMBERSHIP RATES & FEES

Annual Membership Resident Non-Resident

Adult (ages 18-54) $125.00 $200.00
Senior (ages 55+) $60.00 $135.00
Youth (ages 6-17 ) $75.00 $80.00

Daily Guest Pass Fees
Guest 
(rates apply to all ages)

$10.00

Annual Family Membership
Includes:

(2) adult memberships ages 18+ ages
(2) youth memberships 17 under ages

Resident ONLY
$315.00

Each additional youth member $40.00

Additional Fees
Annual Locker Rental (tall)
Annual Locker Rental (short)
Daily Lock Rental 
Replacement Membership 
Badge

$75.00
$50.00
$  0.25
$10.00



Hours of Operation
MONDAY-FRIDAY

6:00AM-9:00PM

SATURDAY 

9:00AM-6:00PM

YOUTH HOURS
ALL MEMBERS AGES 17 AND UNDER MUST ADHERE TO THE FOLLOWING HOURS:

SCHOOL DISTRICT  IN SESSION:  MONDAY-FRIDAY-3:00PM-9:00PM

SCHOOL DISTRCIT OUT-OF-SESSION:  MONDAY-FRIDAY-11:00AM-9:00PM

SATURDAY-9:00AM-6:00PM

 



Stages SC 2.20 Indoor Cycle



Precor SCL 835 Stair Climber



3 YEAR ACTIVE MEMBERSHIP PROFILE

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

2020-2021 (925 Members) 2021-2022 (2421 Members) 2022-2023 (2837 Members)

3 Year Span

3 Year Span



MEMBERSHIP BREAKDOWN

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

10/1/20-8/25/21 (925 MEMBERS) 10/1/21-8/19/22 (2421 MEMBERS) 10/1/22-8/21/23 (2837 MEMBERS)

365

777 742

9
56

102

438

1081

1214

94

429

611

19
78

168

Active Members

Adult Family Seniors Silver Sneakers Youth



MEMBERSHIP PROFILE
Resident/Non-Resident Breakdown

82%

18%

10/1/20 - 8/25/21

Resident-682

Non-
Resident-148

82%

18%

10/1/21 - 8/19/22

Resident-1587

Non-
Resident-348 83%

17%

10/1/22 - 8/21/23

Resident-
1767
Non-
Resident-357



Summer Intern:  Chelsea Nguyen

Week 1 & 2: 
 Front Desk Duties-Learn Civic Rec System
 Set up customers with a membership and or Day Pass
 Set up customers with lockers 
 Learn how to do daily Cash Journal

Week 3 & 4:
 Weight & Cardio Room Duties-Learn Machines
 Learn how to set members up on a workout plan 

Week 5 & 6:
 Learn about Fitness Classes
 Learn how to teach a Senior Fitness Class

Week 7 & 8:
 Learn about Purchasing Equipment
 Evaluate Equipment-Searching and ordering new equipment
 Learn about Athletics

The Hire Up Program



Intern in Action!



Lowry Fitness Center 
Member of the Month

Jose Boix Dolores Penrice Mark Johnson



“The Body Achieves What The Mind Believes”

QUESTIONS??



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for the August 16, 2023, meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2023 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, AUGUST 16, 2023, at 5:00
P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been met,
the meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor   
Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem   
Abel Garza, Jr. , Commissioner At-Large   
DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1   
Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3   
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4   

Absent: Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2

2. INVOCATION

Led by Pastor Kevin Herrin of The Fellowship.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark.
 
4. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
 

a. Service Awards    
Jeremy Tucker Police 08/05/2013 10 years
John Ivy Police 08/25/2008 15 years
Joseph Biagas Public Works 08/19/2008 15 years
Cynthia Baker Fire 08/18/2008 15 years
Bradley Macik Police 08/07/2008 15 years
Jimmie Reynolds Police 08/04/2008 15 years
Debra Taylor Parks & Recreation 08/28/1998 25 years
Mark Holland Public Works 08/24/1998 25 years
Ramon Leon Water 08/10/1998 25 years

Retirement
   

Joe Stanton Police 28 years  

Joe Stanton, Police Chief, spoke about his 28 years in the Texas City Police Department.

  



 
b. Police Promotional Ceremony

Chris Kelemen             Promotion from Officer to Sergeant
Jimmie Reynolds         Promotion from Officer to Sergeant

Chris Kelemen was promoted from Officer to Sergeant by Assistant Chief Cravens and was
pinned by his father.

Jimmie Reynolds was promoted from Officer to Sergeant by Assistant Chief Cravens and
was pinned by Assistant Chief Cravens.

  

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-098, confirming Landis Cravens as the

Mayor's appointment to the Chief of Police and the swearing-in of his new position. (Human
Resources)

Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson conducted the Oath of Office.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer to confirm Landis Cravens as the Texas
City Chief of Police. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
5. REPORTS
 

a. Community Outreach (Police Department)

Timothy Herd, Public Relations Officer, gave a PowerPoint presentation. 

  

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING
 

a. Public hearing to hear citizens' opinions in favor of or in opposition to the proposed 2023 tax
rate of $0.49 per $100 valuation.

There were no comments.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 3

Dorthea Jones Pointer to close the Public Hearing. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Michael Shriey, resident, requested to speak before the Commission. 
 
8. CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer motioned to approve Consent Agenda items
a, b, c, d, e, f, g, h, i, and j. The motion was seconded by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark. 

 



a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the August 2, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)   
 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-089, the acceptance of, and ability to

expend, the FY' 2023 CDBG allocation from HUD. (Community Development)
  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-090, approve the execution of an

engineering service agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., for rehabilitating the 14th Street
250,000 Gallon Elevated Storage Tank and the 32nd Street 500,000 Gallon Ground Storage
Tank Project. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-091, authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the

City of Texas City, to enter into a Developer's Reimbursement Agreement with Mintos
Communities - USA. (City Engineer)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on 2023-092, authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the City of Texas

City, to enter into a Professional Consulting Services Agreement with Marsh Darcy regarding
a 1300 Acre Tract Development Review. (City Engineer)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-093, adopting the PY' 23 (October 1, 2023,

to September 30, 2024) CDBG Action Plan and approving the plan submission to HUD.
(Community Development)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-094, authorizing the purchase of an 800

Amp Transfer Switch from Crescent Electric through BuyBoard, a Local Government
Purchasing Cooperative. (Municipal Court)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-095, awarding Bid No. 2023-435 Amburn

Park and Freeway Park Drainage Improvements Project, to Teamwork Construction
Services, Inc. (Publkic Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 



i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-096, authorizing the purchase of a 2024
Ford Expedition for the Emergency Management Department. (Purchasing)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
j. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-097, awarding Bid No. 2023-011 Code

Compliance Abatement for Residential Substandard Structure Demolition to Texas Ranch
Maintenance LLC and Diamond J Innovation LLC. (Purchasing)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
9. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-28, amending
Chapter 150 ‘Building Regulations; Construction” related to additional authority regarding
substandard structures. (Fire Department)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 4

Jami Clark 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-30, levying an ad valorem tax for the year

2023 for the City of Texas City. (Finance)

Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr. made a motion that the property tax rate be
increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $.49, which is effectively a 6.89 percent increase in
the tax rate. The motion was seconded by Commissioner District 1 DeAndre' Knoxson. 

The record vote was as follows: 
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor --- aye 
Thelma Bowie, Mayor Pro Tern, and Commissioner At-Large --- aye 
Abel Garza, Jr., Commissioner At-Large --- aye 
DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1 --- aye 
Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2 --- ABSENT
Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3 --- aye 
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4 --- aye 

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
10. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS

Abel Garza, Jr. congratulated League City (Tex.) Post 554 on a 1-0 victory against Lincoln
(Neb.) Post 3 in the 2023 American Legion World Series championship game.

 
11. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

Mayor Jonson congratulated Madison Swain for winning Miss Juneteenth Texas and
advancing to represent the state of Texas at the national 2023 Miss Juneteenth USA pageant
in Philadelphia this fall. 



 
12. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie made a MOTION to ADJOURN at 6:10 p.m.;
the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner At Large Abel Garza, Jr.. All present voted AYE.
MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (b)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
MUNICIPAL COURT FRONT DESK RENOVATION
Submitted For: Tammy Odom, Municipal Court  Submitted By: Tammy Odom, Municipal

Court
Department: Municipal Court

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider bid from Generosity Services Inc to remodel the Municipal Court front desk area in
the amount of $45,596.91 to be paid out of Municipal Court Efficiency Fund.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The cashier area of the Municipal Court is part of the original building construction.   The
purpose, scope of work performed, and technical needs in these areas has changed
significantly since that time.  This remodel will allow for a safer, more logical and ergonomic
workflow area.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the item be approved to increase safety and work productivity in this
space. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Quote 













   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (c)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
approval of payment to South Point Estates (Parcels, 14, 16 and 18) for sanitary sewer easement.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Seeking approval for the payment of $94,046.93 to South Point Estates (Parcels 14, 16 and
18) for a sanitary sewer easement. South Point Estates has approved the sale by board
resolution and signed the easement document which is being held in trust pending payment.
A copy of the signed document is attached to this resolution.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The sanitary sewer easement is necessary for the construction of a 24" force main from Lago
Mar Lift Station to Lift Station No. 29. The additional capacity is necessary to provide
additional sewer service to the service area. The project is included in the updated Capital
Improvement Plan and construction will be funded from impact fee revenue. The funds for
acquisition of the easements are budgeted in the approved 2022-2023 budget. Commission
approval of this expenditure is required by the City Charter because the amount exceeds
$50,000.00.

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of the payment for the sanitary sewer easement.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
South Point Estates Parcel 14 Email Request 
South Point Estates Parcel 14 Signed Easement Agreement 
South Point Estates Parcel 14 Signed ROE Agreement 
South Point Estates Parcel 16 Email Request 
South Point Estates Parcel 16 Signed Easement Agreement 
South Point Estates Parcel 16 Signed ROE Agreement 
South Point Estates Parcel 18 Email Request 
South Point Estates Parcel 18 Signed Easement Agreement 
South Point Estates Parcel 18 Signed ROE Agreement 



From: Kim Golden
To: Veronica Carreon
Subject: 1 of 3 FW: South Point Estates Parcel 14
Date: Monday, August 21, 2023 5:00:18 PM
Attachments: We sent you safe versions of your files.msg

parcel 14 easement signed.pdf
Parcel 14 ROE signed.pdf

Veronica, I am sending you the information on the 3 parcels as separate emails because too big to
be in just one.  Thanks. Kim
 

From: Tony Sewell <tony@legacylandpartners.net> 
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 2:41 PM
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Subject: Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 14
 

**EXTERNAL EMAIL**

 
Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening files.

 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for Kinder Morgan
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: "Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>
Subject: South Point Estates Parcel 14
Date: July 29, 2023 at 4:00:42 PM CDT
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Cc: Shanda Austin <Shanda@legacylandpartners.net>
 
Parcel 14:  $59,291.17
 
 
 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for the City of Texas City
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net

mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:vcarreon@texascitytx.gov
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:Shanda@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net

We sent you safe versions of your files

		From

		no-reply@texas-city-tx.org

		To

		Kim Golden

		Recipients

		kgolden@texascitytx.gov



 	

 		

 	



We sent you safe copies of the attached files





If you want the originals, you can request them.



	

 	

Files

 	

parcel 14 easement signed.pdf (6.8 MB)

Parcel 14 ROE signed.pdf (4.4 MB)

	

	

 	

Message Details



 	

From



"Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>



Subject



Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 14



Sent



21 Aug 2023 15:40



	

 	

Request Files	

	

 	

 	

 

 	

© 2015 - 2018 Mimecast Services Limited.

 	

	

                                                           























































 

 
 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out
more Click Here.

http://www.mimecast.com/products/


























From: Kim Golden
To: Veronica Carreon
Subject: 2 of 3 FW: South Point Estates Parcel 16
Date: Monday, August 21, 2023 4:59:27 PM
Attachments: We sent you safe versions of your files.msg

Parcel 16 easement signed.pdf
Parcel 16 ROE signed.pdf

 
 

From: Tony Sewell <tony@legacylandpartners.net> 
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 2:41 PM
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Subject: Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 16
 

**EXTERNAL EMAIL**

 
Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening files.

 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for Kinder Morgan
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: "Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>
Subject: South Point Estates Parcel 16
Date: July 29, 2023 at 4:01:41 PM CDT
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Cc: Shanda Austin <Shanda@legacylandpartners.net>
 
Parcel 16: $29,937.56
 
 
 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for the City of Texas City
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net

 

mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:vcarreon@texascitytx.gov
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:Shanda@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net

We sent you safe versions of your files

		From

		no-reply@texas-city-tx.org

		To

		Kim Golden

		Recipients

		kgolden@texascitytx.gov



 	

 		

 	



We sent you safe copies of the attached files





If you want the originals, you can request them.



	

 	

Files

 	

Parcel 16 easement signed.pdf (6.8 MB)

Parcel 16 ROE signed.pdf (4.5 MB)

	

	

 	

Message Details



 	

From



"Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>



Subject



Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 16



Sent



21 Aug 2023 15:41



	

 	

Request Files	

	

 	

 	

 

 	

© 2015 - 2018 Mimecast Services Limited.

 	

	

                                                           























































 
 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out
more Click Here.

http://www.mimecast.com/products/


























From: Kim Golden
To: Veronica Carreon
Subject: 3 of 3 FW: South Point Estates Parcel 18
Date: Monday, August 21, 2023 4:59:11 PM
Attachments: We sent you safe versions of your files.msg

Parcel 18 easement signed.pdf
Parcel 18 ROE signed.pdf

 
 

From: Tony Sewell <tony@legacylandpartners.net> 
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 2:41 PM
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Subject: Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 18
 

**EXTERNAL EMAIL**

 
Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening files.

 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for Kinder Morgan
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: "Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>
Subject: South Point Estates Parcel 18
Date: July 29, 2023 at 4:02:35 PM CDT
To: Kim Golden <kgolden@texascitytx.gov>
Cc: Shanda Austin <Shanda@legacylandpartners.net>
 
Parcel 18: $4,818.20
 
 
Tony L. Sewell
SR ROW Agent/Contractor for the City of Texas City
Cell: 936-522-6463
Email : tony@legacylandpartners.net

 

 

mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:vcarreon@texascitytx.gov
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:kgolden@texascitytx.gov
mailto:Shanda@legacylandpartners.net
mailto:tony@legacylandpartners.net

We sent you safe versions of your files

		From

		no-reply@texas-city-tx.org

		To

		Kim Golden

		Recipients

		kgolden@texascitytx.gov



 	

 		

 	



We sent you safe copies of the attached files





If you want the originals, you can request them.



	

 	

Files

 	

Parcel 18 easement signed.pdf (6.8 MB)

Parcel 18 ROE signed.pdf (4.4 MB)

	

	

 	

Message Details



 	

From



"Tony Sewell" <tony@legacylandpartners.net>



Subject



Fwd: South Point Estates Parcel 18



Sent



21 Aug 2023 15:41



	

 	

Request Files	

	

 	

 	

 

 	

© 2015 - 2018 Mimecast Services Limited.

 	

	

                                                           























































 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out
more Click Here.

http://www.mimecast.com/products/


























   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (d)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
2022 /2023 Public Works Trucks Purchase
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the purchase of two (2) F250 regular cab service body trucks and one (1) regular cab
F350 4x4 service body with crane and lift gate truck from Silsbee Ford via TIPS contract
number 200206.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Due to the earlier shortage of vehicles we were unable to get good quote numbers until now
for our 2022 / 2023 capital replacement budget. 

Two (2) F250 service body trucks are $58,863.25 each totaling $117,726.50 and the F 350
4x4 service body with crane and lift gate is $105,058.75. The total for all three (3) trucks is
$222,784.25. These will be purchased from Silsbee Ford in Silsbee, TX. via TIPS Contract #
200206.

Funds are made available via FY 22/23 Public Works Capital Replacement Budget Fund

TIPS worksheets are attached for you review

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve this purchase.

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 







   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (e)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Bid # 2023-436 Lift Station 30 Improvements Project
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and award a contract for Bid # 2023-436 Lift Station 30 Improvement Project.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On August 1st and 8th, 2023, a notice to bidders was published in the local paper and bid
packets were made available to local businesses through CivCastUSA.com and ARKK
Engineers.  Bids were received, opened and read aloud on August 24, 2023, at 9:30 a.m.  

The lowest responsible bidder meeting all requirements was McDonald Municipal and
Industrial, a Division of C. F. McDonald Electric, Inc. from Houston TX., for the total bid price of
$590,469.00.

A bid tabulation and letter of recommendation are attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department that the City Commission award the
contract for this project to McDonald Municipal and Industrial, a Division of C. F.
McDonald Electric, Inc., for the total bid amount of $590,469.00 and that the Mayor be
authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City Commission. 

The Public Works Department further recommends that the Mayor be authorized to approve
any change orders, not to exceed 25% of the total contract amount, without bringing the
matter before the City Commission.

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 









   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (f)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Authorizing the submission of nominations (s) to the Galveston County Appraisal District Board of
Directors
Submitted For: Jon Branson, Management Services 
Submitted By: Jon Branson, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-103 authorizing the submission of
nomination (s) for the Galveston County Appraisal District Board of Directors for two-year
terms, beginning January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025.  

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Bi-annually, the City of Texas City is offered the opportunity submit up to five (5) names to
serve on the Galveston County Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.  In accordance
with the Property Tax Code, the City of Texas City must pass a formal resolution authorizing
the submission of up to five (5) individuals to serve on the Board.  The written resolution must
be acted upon and submitted to the Galveston County Appraisal District (GCAD) before
October 15, 2023.

Once all names are officially submitted to GCAD, an alphabetized ballot will be delivered to
each City before October 30th.  Once received, the City of Texas City will have 195 votes to
cast for whomever the Mayor and City Commission deems appropriate.  The Commission
votes must be submitted in the form of a written resolution and approved by the majority of the
Commission and submitted to GCAD before December 15th of this year.

RECOMMENDATION
Mayor Dedrick Johnson Sr., is recommending the following individual (s) to be nominated for
consideration to the Galveston Central Appraisal District Board of Directors for the service
period of January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025:

Matt Doyle - Current Board Member

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
GCAD Nomination Letter 













   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Res 13-079        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Consider approval of the City of Texas City’s Investment Policy.
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of the City of Texas City Investment Policy.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
In 1995, the City adopted an Investment Policy to comply with the Texas Public Funds
Investment Act (TPFIA). The City of Texas City’s Investment Policy mandates how City funds
are to be managed and invested.  The Policy requires annual review and approval by the City
Commission.  
 
No changes to the policy this year.

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of the city's investment policy.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
CTC Investment Policy 



 

City of Texas City, Texas  

Investment Policy 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Amended March 15, 2017 

via  City Commission Ordinance 

http://www.texas-city-tx.org/page/homepage�


City of Texas City, Texas 
Investment Policy 
Table of Contents 

 
Investment Strategy .................................................................................... 1 

 I. Policy......................................................................................................... 2 
 II. Scope ........................................................................................................ 2 
 III. Investment Objectives ............................................................................. 3 
  Safety ...................................................................................................... 3 
  Liquidity ................................................................................................... 3 
  Yield ........................................................................................................ 3 
 IV. Standards of Care .................................................................................... 3 
  Delegation of Investment Authority .......................................................... 3 
  Standard of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest ............................................. 4 
  Prudence ................................................................................................. 5 
  Cash Flow Forecasting ............................................................................ 5 
  Internal Controls/Annual Compliance Audit ............................................. 6 
 V. Suitable and Authorized Investments .................................................... 6 
  Authorized ............................................................................................... 6 
  Not Authorized ......................................................................................... 7 
 VI. Financial Dealers and Institutions .......................................................... 7 
  Authorized Brokers/Dealers ..................................................................... 7 
  Depository ............................................................................................... 9 
  Competitive Bids ...................................................................................... 9 
  Delivery vs. Payment ............................................................................... 9 
VII. Safekeeping and Custody ..................................................................... 10 
  Safekeeping Agreement ........................................................................ 10 
  Safekeeping and Custody ..................................................................... 10 
  Collateralization ..................................................................................... 10 

 VIII. Investment Parameters .......................................................................... 10 
  Maximum Maturities .............................................................................. 10 
  Diversification ........................................................................................ 11 
 IX. Reporting ................................................................................................ 11 
  Marking to Market .................................................................................. 12 
 X. Performance Standards ......................................................................... 12 
  Performance Standards ......................................................................... 12 
  Performance Benchmark ....................................................................... 12 
 XI. Policy Adoption ...................................................................................... 12 
  Annual Review and Adoption of Investment Policy ................................ 12 

Glossary .................................................................................................... 13 
Attachment A-Broker/Dealer Questionnaire and Certification ................... 24 
Attachment B-TPFIA Certification by Dealer ............................................. 30 
Attachment C-Recommended Sponsors of Investment Training ............... 31 
Attachment D-Qualified Broker/Dealers .................................................... 32 
Attachment E-Ordinance -Approving City’s Investment Policy .................. 33 

  



INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 

The investment strategy, of the City of Texas City, Texas, is adopted to provide 
investment guidelines that will minimize the risk of loss, whereby the City of Texas City, 
Texas will pursue a passive investment strategy. In order to make effective use of the 
City’s resources, all monies shall be pooled into one fund, except for those monies 
required to be accounted for in other accounts as stipulated by applicable laws, bond 
covenants, contracts or City policy. Investments will be purchased with the intent of 
holding to maturity and will only be sold early under exceptional circumstances. In 
purchasing investments, the Investment Officer will attempt to follow a ladder strategy to 
ensure that the portfolio will meet the City’s liquidity needs. Investment priorities, in 
order of priority, are as follows: 
 
 

1. Suitability – Any investment allowed by the Investment Policy is suitable.  
 
2. Preservation and Safety of Principal – Investments of the City shall be 

undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of capital in 
the overall portfolio. 

 
3. Liquidity – The City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the City to meet all operational requirements that might reasonably 
be anticipated. 

 
4. Marketability – Investments should have an active and efficient 

secondary market to enable the City to liquidate investments prior to the 
maturity if the need should arise. 

 
5. Diversification – The Investment Officer will attempt to maintain a 

diversified portfolio with regard to security type, financial institution 
providing the security, and maturity. 

 
6. Yield – The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective 

of attaining the maximum rate of return throughout budgetary and 
economic cycles, taking into account the City’s risk constraints and the 
cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



City of Texas City, Texas 

 
Investment Policy 

 
The Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as 
Amended (“PFIA” herein), requires each city to adopt rules governing its investment 
practices and to define the authority of the investment officer. The following Investment 
Policy addresses the methods, procedures, and practices that must be exercised to 
ensure effective and judicious fiscal management of the City of Texas City funds. 

 
I. 

 
POLICY  

It is the policy of the City of Texas City, Texas (“City”) to invest public funds in a manner 
that will ensure the preservation of capital, conform to all applicable State and Local 
statutes governing the investment of public funds and provide reasonable investment 
returns. The City shall invest all funds deemed in excess of current needs. “Current 
needs” are hereby defined as expenditures to be required within a given ninety- (90) -
day period  
 

II. 
 

SCOPE 

The investment policy applies to all the financial assets and funds held by the City, 
except for the Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund. These funds are defined in the 
City of Texas City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and include: 

 

 
Funds 

1. General Funds 
2. Special Revenue Funds 
3. Capital Projects Funds 
4. Enterprise Funds 
5. Internal Service Funds 
6. Debt Service Funds 
7. Trust and Agency Funds 

 
Any new funds created by the City will be subject to this policy unless specifically 
exempted by the City Council. To maximize the effective investment of assets, all funds 
mentioned above will pool their cash balances for investment purposes. The income 
derived from investing activities will be distributed to the various funds based on 
calculation of their average balances. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

2



III. 
 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The City of Texas City shall manage and invest its cash with three (3)

 

 primary 
objectives, listed in order of priority: safety, liquidity, and yield. The safety of principal 
invested always remains the primary objective.  

 
Safety 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City. Investment of City funds shall be 
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital and the 
protection of investment principal in the overall portfolio.  

 

 
Liquidity 

The City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all 
operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by 
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet 
anticipated disbursement schedules of the City. 
   

 
Yield 

The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objectives of attaining a 
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
City’s risk constraints and the cash flow of the portfolio. Return on investment is of least 
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. “Market 
rate of return” may be defined as the average yield of the current three-month U.S. 
Treasury Bill or such other index that closely matches the average maturity of the 
portfolio.  
 

IV. 
 

STANDARDS OF CARE 

 
Delegation of Investment Authority 

Article 11, Section 1 of the Charter of the City of Texas City designates the Director of 
Finance. The Director of Finance, acting on behalf of the City Commission, is 
designated as the Investment Officer of the City and is responsible for investment 
management decisions and activities. The Director of Finance may appoint an 
Investment Officer whose responsibility shall be to invest the funds on behalf of the City 
in accordance with this investment policy. The City Commission is also responsible for 
considering the quality and capability of staff, investment advisors, and consultants 
involved in investment management and procedures. All participants in the investment 
process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public trust. 
 
The Investment Officer shall develop and maintain written administrative procedures for 
the operation of the investment program, which are consistent with this investment 
policy. Procedures will include reference to safekeeping, require and include PSA  

3



 
Delegation of Investment Authority (continued) 

master repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements; banking services contracts, 
and other investment related activities. 

 
The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall 
establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials and staff. 
The Investment Officer shall designate a staff person as a liaison/deputy in the event 
circumstances require timely action and the Investment Officer is not available. 

 
No officer or designee may engage in an investment transaction except as provided 
under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Investment Officer 
and approved by the Director of Finance. 

 

 
Investment Training 

The Chief Financial Officer and all designated Investment Officers of the City shall: 
 
(1) Attend at least one training session, from an independent source 

approved by the City Commission and containing at least 10 hours of 
instruction relating to the responsibilities under this policy within 12 
months after taking office or assuming duties; and 
 

(2) Attend an investment training session not less than once in a two-
year period and receive not less than 8 hours of instruction relating to 
investment responsibilities. 

 
Training must include education in investment controls, security risks, strategy risks, 
market risks, diversification of investment portfolio, and compliance with the Public 
Funds Investment Act.  

 

 
Standard of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the 
investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. 
Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the Mayor any personal business 
relationship in financial institutions with which they conduct business. An employee or 
officer has a personal business relationship with a business organization if: 

 
1. The employee or officer owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock or 

shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair 
market value of the business organization; 

 
 
 

4



 
Standard of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest (continued) 

2. Funds received by the employee or officer from the business organization 
exceed 10 percent of the employee’s gross income for the previous year; 
or 

 
3. The employee or officer has acquired from the business organization 

during the previous year investments with a book value of $2,500 or more 
for the personal account of the employee or officer. 

 
They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be 
related to the performance of the investment portfolio including an individual who is 
related within the second degree by affinity or consanguinity to an individual seeking to 
sell an investment to the City. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking 
personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is 
conducted on behalf of their entity.  Disclosure under this section shall be accomplished 
by filing a statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Commission. 
 

 
Prudence 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then 
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the 
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the expected income to be derived. 

 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent 
person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. 
Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment 
policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an 
individual security’s credit or market price changes provided deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control 
adverse developments. 
 

 
Cash Flow Forecasting 

Cash flow forecasting is designed to protect and sustain cash flow requirements of the 
City. Supplemental to the financial and budgetary systems, the Investment Officer will 
maintain a cash flow forecasting process designed to monitor and forecast cash 
positions for investment purposes. Cash flow will include historical researching and 
monitoring of specific cash flow items, payables and receivables as well as overall cash 
position and patterns. 
 
 
 
 

5



 
Internal Controls/Annual Compliance Audit 

The Investment Officer shall establish a system of written internal controls which shall 
be designed to prevent loss of public funds due to fraud, employee error, mis-
representation by third parties, unanticipated market changes, or imprudent actions by 
employees of the City. In conjunction with the City’s annual financial audit, a compliance 
audit shall be performed of management controls on investments and adherence to the 
City’s established investment policies. 
 

V. 
 

SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

Acceptable investments under this policy shall be limited to the instruments as 
described by the Texas Government Code; Chapter 2256, Sections 2256.09 through 
2256.011 and Sections 2256.013 through 2256.016 of the Public Funds Investment Act. 
Investment of funds in any instrument or security not authorized for investment under 
the Act is prohibited. 
 

 
Authorized 

1. Direct Obligations of the United States Government: U.S. Treasury Bills, U.S. 
Treasury Notes, and U.S. Treasury Bonds as well as Bonds or other interest 
bearing obligations for which the principal and interest are guaranteed by the 
full faith and credit of the United States government. Federal Agencies and 
instrumentalities including but not limited to, discount notes, callables and 
debentures of the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), and 
the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). 

 
2. Time Certificates of Deposit, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation (FDIC) or its successor, in state or national banks. Any deposits 
exceeding FDIC insurance limits shall be collateralized at 102% of the face 
amount of the Certificate of Deposit by securities listed in 1 above and held by 
the City’s custodial bank. Bids for Certificates of Deposit may be solicited 
orally, in writing, electronically or using any combination of these methods. 

 
3. Repurchase Agreements with a defined termination date of 90 days or less 

collateralized by securities listed in 1 above. Collateral must have a minimum 
market value of 102% of the repurchase agreement, and must be held by the 
custodian bank or other independent third-party custodian contracted by the 
City. Bond proceeds may be invested in flexible repurchase agreements with 
maturity dates not exceeding the expected final project expenditure if a formal 
bidding process is followed and properly documented for IRS purposes. 

 
 
 
 

6



 
Authorized (continued) 

4. AAA-rated Investment Pools organized under the Texas Inter-local 
Cooperation Act that follow the requirements in the Public Funds Investment 
Act and which have been specifically approved by the City Commission. 

 
5. Commercial Paper maturing within 180 days carrying a minimum rating of A-

1, P-1 or F-1. 
 
6. AAA-rated Money Market Mutual Funds registered with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission that invests exclusively in investments described in 
this section. 

 

 
Not Authorized 

The following security types are not permitted: 
 
1. Interest-Only Strips (IO’s): Obligations whose payments represent the 

principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security 
collateral and bears no principal. 

 
2. Principal-Only Strips (PO’s): Obligations whose payments represent the 

principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security 
collateral and bears no interest. 

 
3. Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMO’s): Obligations that have a stated 

final maturity date of greater than 10 years. 
 
4. Any security, the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts 

opposite to the changes in the Market Index (inverse floaters). 
 

 
 

VI. 
 

FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 

 

 
Authorized Brokers/Dealers 

The Investment Officer shall maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide 
investment services.  In addition, a list shall also be maintained of approved security 
broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide investment 
services in the State of Texas.  These may include primary dealers or regional dealers 
that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital 
rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as 
established by state laws. 
 

7



 
Authorized Brokers/Dealers (continued) 

All financial institutions and brokers/dealers who desire to become a qualified bidder for 
investment transactions must supply the Investment Officer with a completed 
Broker/Dealer Questionnaire and Certification, which shall include the following: 
 

1. An audited financial statement for the most recent period. 
 

2. Proof of certification by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA). 
 
3. Proof of current registration with the State Securities Commission. 
 

Financial institutions eligible to transact investment business with the City shall be 
presented a written copy of this Investment Policy. 
 
Additionally, the registered principal of the business organization seeking to transact 
investment business shall execute a written instrument substantially to the effect that 
the registered principal has received and reviewed this Investment Policy, and 
acknowledge that the organization has implemented reasonable procedures and 
controls in an effort to preclude imprudent investment activities with the City. 

 
The City Commission shall, at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified 
brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with the City. 

 
The City may appoint one or more Investment Advisors to assist the City’s financial staff 
in the management of the City’s funds. The Investment Advisor must be registered with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 
and with the State Securities Board. To be eligible for consideration, an Investment 
Advisor shall demonstrate knowledge of and experience in the management of public 
funds. The Investment Advisors qualifications will be checked by all appropriate means, 
including reference checks with the Advisor’s other clients, the State Securities Board 
and the Securities and Exchange Commission. An appointed Investment Advisor shall 
act within the guidelines of this Investment Policy while transacting business on behalf 
of the City. 

 
1. Appointment of an Investment Advisor shall otherwise be according to the 

City’s normal purchasing procedures for selecting professional services. 
Appointment may not exceed a term of two years. A renewal or extension of 
the contract must be made by City Commission resolution. 

 
2. The City may not purchase any securities from the Investment Advisor, or a 

parent or other affiliated company of the Investment Advisor. 
 
3. The Investment Advisor is prohibited from making soft-dollar arrangements of 

any kind. 
 

8



 
 

 
Authorized Brokers/Dealers (continued) 

4. All contracted Investment Advisors shall report book value and market value 
of investment holdings, the total investment return, and such other information 
requested by the Director of Finance as often as requested by the Director. 

 

 
Depository 

At least every five (5) years a Depository shall be selected through the City’s banking 
services procurement process, which shall include a formal request for proposal (RFP). 
The selection of a depository will be determined by competitive bid and evaluation of 
bids will be based on the following selection criteria: 
 

1. The ability to qualify as a depository for public funds in accordance with state 
and local laws. 

 
2. The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the 

period specified. 
 
3. The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP. 
 
4. Complete response to all required items on the bid form. 
 
5. Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an 

appropriate level of service. 
 
6. The credit worthiness and financial stability of the bank. 
 

The bank depository contract is subject to City Commission approval. 
 

 
Competitive Bids 

Investment transactions will normally be conducted based on comparison of a minimum 
of three (3) quotes obtained from any of the approved brokers with attention to yield as 
well as diversification with regard to issuing entity and broker/dealer. Limitations of time 
and supply may provide otherwise. Security transactions that may be purchased without 
competitive offers include: a) transactions with money market mutual funds; b) local 
government investment pools and c) new securities still in syndicate priced at par. 
 

 
Delivery vs. Payment 

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements but excluding 
investment pool and mutual funds, entered into by the City, shall be conducted on a 
delivery versus payment (DVP) basis. 

9



 
 

VII. 
 

SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 

 
Safekeeping Agreement 

The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities either 
owned by the City as part of its investment portfolio or held as collateral to secure 
demand or time deposits. 
 

 
Safekeeping and Custody 

Safekeeping and custody of securities and collateral shall be in accordance with state 
law. Securities and collateral will be held by a third party custodian designated by the 
Investment Officer and held in the City’s name as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of 
the institution with which the securities are deposited. Original safekeeping receipts 
shall be obtained. 
 

 
Collateralization 

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of the 
City to require full collateralization of all investments and funds on deposit with a 
depository bank, other than investments, which are obligations of the U.S. Government, 
its agencies and instrumentalities, and government sponsored enterprises. In order to 
anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the 
collateralization level will be 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest on 
deposits or investments less than an amount insured by the FDIC.  
 
Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a 
current custodial agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping 
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained. 
 
The right of collateral substitution is granted. 
 
 
 

VIII. 
 

INVESTMENT PARAMETERS 

 
Maximum Maturities 

To the extent possible, the City of Texas City, will attempt to match its investments with 
anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will 
not directly invest in securities maturing more than five (5) years from the date of 
purchase. Additionally, the City will maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of two 
(2) years or less. 
 

10



 
 
 

 
Diversification 

It is the intent of the City to diversify the investment instruments within the portfolio to 
avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-investing in specific instruments, 
individual financial institutions or maturities. The asset allocation in the portfolio should 
be flexible depending on the outlook for the economy and securities market. If 
conditions warrant, the guidelines below may be exceeded by approval of the Mayor. 
 

1. U.S. Treasury Securities .......................................... 100% 
 
2. Agencies and Instrumentalities .................................. 75% 
 
3. Certificates of Deposit .............................................. 100% 
 
4. Money Market Mutual Funds ...................................... 30% 
 
5. Repurchase Agreements............................................ 20% 
 
6. Commercial Paper ..................................................... 20% 
 
7. Authorized Pools ........................................................ 70% 
 

 
 

IX. 
 

REPORTING 

Not less than quarterly and within a reasonable time after the end of the period 
reported, the Investment Officer should prepare and submit to the City Commission a 
written report of the investment transactions for all funds of the City for the preceding 
reporting period. The report must: 

 
1. Describe in detail the investment position of the City on the date of the report. 
 
2. Contain a summary statement of each pooled fund group that states the 

beginning market value for the reporting period and additions and changes to 
the market value for the period. 

 
3. State the book value and market value of each separately invested asset at 

the beginning and end of the reporting period by the type of asset and fund 
type invested. 

 
4. State the maturity date of each separately invested asset that has a maturity 

date. 

11



 
5. State the pooled group fund in the City for which each individual investment 

was acquired. 
 

6. The quarterly report will be prepared jointly by all investment officers and be 
signed by all investment officers. 

 
7. State all accrued interest payable. 

 
8. State the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to this policy and 

the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA). 
 

 
Marking to Market 

The market values of the City’s investments shall be obtained from a reliable outside 
source, which has access to investment market values. 
 
 
 

X. 
 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 
Performance Standards 

The investment policy shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk 
constraints and cash flow needs. 
 

 
Performance Benchmark 

The City of Texas City, Texas investment strategy is passive. Given this strategy, the 
benchmark to be used by the Investment Officer to determine whether market yields are 
being achieved shall be the average closing yield during the reporting period 
comparable to the portfolios dollar-weighted average maturity in days. 
 
 

XI. 
 

POLICY ADOPTION 

 
Annual Review and Adoption of Investment Policy 

The City Commission shall adopt the City’s investment policy. The Director of Finance 
and City Commission shall review the policy and investment strategies on an annual 
basis. The City Commission must approve any changes. 

 

12



 
GLOSSARY 

-A- 
 

Accrued Interest – The accumulated interest due on a bond as of the last 
interest payment made by the issuer. 
 
Agency – A debt security issued by a federal or federally sponsored agency. 
Federal agencies are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. 
Federally sponsored agencies (FSAs) are backed by each particular agency with 
a market perception that there is an implicit government guarantee. An example 
of federal agency is the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA). An 
example of a FSA is the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA). 
 
Amortization – The systematic reduction of the amount owed on a debt issue 
through periodic payments of principal. 
 
Asked – The price at which securities are offered. 
 
Average Life – The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or 
term bonds with a mandatory sinking fund features is expected to be outstanding. 
 

-B- 
 
Basis Point – A unit of measurement used in the valuation of fixed-income 
securities equal to 1/100 of 1 percent of yield, e.g., “1/4” of 1 percent is equal to 
25 basis points. 

 
Bid – The indicated price at which a buyer is willing to purchase a security or 
commodity. 
 
Book Value – The value at which a security is carried on the inventory lists or 
other financial records of an investor. The book value may differ significantly from 
the security’s current value in the market. 
 
Broker – A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission paid by 
the initiator of the transaction or by both sides; he does not position. In the 
money market, brokers are active in markets in which banks buy and sell money 
and in interdealer markets. 
 

-C- 
 

Callable Bond – A bond issue in which all or part of its outstanding principal 
amount may be redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified 
conditions. 
 

13



-C- (continued) 
 
Call Price – The price at which an issuer may redeem a bond prior to maturity. 
The price is usually at a slight premium to the bond’s original issue price to 
compensate the holder for loss of income and ownership. 
 
Call Risk – The risk to a bondholder that a bond may be redeemed prior to 
maturity. 
 
Cash Sale/Purchase – A transaction that calls for delivery and payment of 
securities on the same day the transaction is initiated. 
 
Certificate of Deposit (CD) – A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced 
by a certificate. Large-denomination CD’s are typical negotiable.  

 
Collateralization – Process by which a borrower pledges securities, property, or 
other deposits for the purposes of securing the repayment of a loan and/or 
security. 
 
Commercial Paper – An unsecured short-term promissory note issued by 
corporations, with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days. 
 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) – The official annual report 
for the City of Texas City. It includes five combined statements for each individual 
fund and account group prepared in conformity with GAAP. It also includes 
supporting schedules necessary to demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal and contractual provisions, extensive introductory material, and a detailed 
Statistical Section. 
 
Convexity – A measure of a bond’s price sensitivity to changing interest rates. A 
high convexity indicates greater sensitivity of a bond’s price to interest rate 
changes. 
 
Coupon Rate – The annual rate of interest received by an investor from the 
issuer of certain types of fixed-income securities. It is also known as the interest 
rate. 
 
Credit Quality – The measurement of the financial strength of a bond issuer. 
This measurement helps an investor to understand an issuer’s ability to make 
timely interest payments and repay the loan principal upon maturity. Generally, 
the higher the credit quality of a bond issuer, the lower the interest rate paid by 
the issuer because the risk of default is lower. Credit quality ratings are provided 
by nationally recognized rating agencies. 
 
Credit Risk – The risk to an investor that an issuer will default in the payment of 
interest and/or principal on a security. 

14



-D- 
 
Dealer – A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, 
buying and selling for his own account. 

 
Delivery Versus Payment (DVP) – A type of security transaction in which the 
purchaser pays for the securities when they are delivered either to the purchaser 
or his/her custodian. 
 
Derivative Security – Financial instrument created from, or whose value 
depends upon, one or more underlying assets or indexes of asset values. 
 
Discount – The amount by which the par value of a security exceeds the price 
paid for the security. 

 
Discount Securities – Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are 
issued a discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value, e.g. U.S. Treasury 
Bills. 

 
Diversification – A process of investing assets among a range of security types 
by sector, maturity, and quality rating. 
 
Duration – A measure of the timing of the cash flows, such as the interest 
payments and the principal repayment, to be received from a given fixed-income 
security. This calculation is based on three variables: term to maturity, coupon 
rate, and yield to maturity. The duration of a security is a useful indicator of its 
price volatility for given changes in interest rates. 
 

-F- 
 
Fair Value – The amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation 
sale. 
 
Federal Funds (Fed Funds) – Funds placed in Federal Reserve banks by 
depository institutions in excess of current reserve requirements. These 
depository institutions may lend fed funds to each other overnight or on a longer 
basis. They may also transfer funds among each other on a same-day basis 
through the Federal Reserve banking system. Fed funds are considered 
immediately available funds. 
 
Federal Funds Rate – Interest rate charged by one institution lending federal 
funds to the other. 
 
 
 

15



-F- (continued) 
 
Federal Credit Agencies – Agencies of the Federal Government set up to 
supply credit to various classes of institutions and individuals, e.g., S&L’s, small 
business firms, students, farmers, farm cooperatives, and exporters. 

 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) – A federal agency that insures 
bank deposits, currently up to $250,000 per depository account. 

 
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) – The institutions that regulates and lend to 
savings and loans associations. The Federal Home Loan Banks play a role 
similar to that played by the Federal Reserve Banks versus member commercial 
banks. 

 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) – FNMA, like GNMA was 
chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act in 1938. FNMA is 
a federal corporation working under the auspices of the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD). It is the largest single provider of residential 
mortgage funds in the United States. Fannie Mae, as the corporation is called, is 
a private stockholder-owned corporation. The corporation’s purchases include a 
variety of adjustable mortgages and second loans, in addition to fixed-rate 
mortgages. FNMA’s securities are also highly liquid and are widely accepted. 
FNMA assumes and guarantees that all security holders will receive timely 
payment of principal and interest. 
 
Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) – Consists of seven members of the 
Federal Reserve Board and five of the twelve Federal Reserve Bank Presidents. 
The President of the New York Federal Reserve Bank is a permanent member 
while the other Presidents serve on a rotating basis. The Committee periodically 
meets to set Federal Reserve guidelines regarding purchases and sales of 
Government Securities in the open market as a means of influencing the volume 
of bank credit and money. 
 
Federal Reserve System – The central bank of the United States created by 
Congress and consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in Washington, 
D.C., 12 regional banks and about 5,700 commercial banks that are members of 
the system. 
 
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) – A self-regulatory 
organization (SRO) of brokers and dealers in the over-the-counter securities 
business. Its regulatory mandate includes authority over firms that distribute 
mutual fund shares as well as other securities. 
 
 
 
 

16



-G- 
 
Government Securities – An obligation of the U.S. Government, backed by the 
full faith and credit of the government. These securities are regarded as the 
highest quality of investment securities available in the U.S. securities market. 
See “Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds”. 
 

-I- 
 
Interest Rate – See “Coupon Rate”. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates 
which cause an investment in a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in 
value. 
 
Internal Controls – An internal control structure designated to ensure that the 
assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control 
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are 
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 1) the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 2) the valuation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Internal 
controls should address the following points: 
 

• Control of collusion – Collusion is a situation where two or more 
employees are working in conjunction to defraud their employer. 

• Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record 
keeping – By separating the person who authorizes or performs the 
transaction from the people who record or otherwise account for the 
transaction, a separation of duties is achieved. 

• Custodial safekeeping – Securities purchased from any bank or 
dealer including appropriate collateral (as defined by state law) shall be 
placed with an independent third party for custodial safekeeping. 

 
Inverted Yield Curve – A chart formation that illustrates long-term securities 
having lower yields than short-term securities. This configuration usually occurs 
during periods of high inflation coupled with low levels of confidence in the 
economy and a restrictive monetary policy. 
 
Investment Company Act of 1940 – Federal legislation that sets the standards 
by which investment companies, such as mutual funds, are regulated in the 
areas of advertising, promotion, performance reporting requirements, and 
securities valuations. 
 
Investment Policy – A concise and clear statement of the objectives and 
parameters formulated by an investor or investment manager for a portfolio of 
investment securities. 

17



-I- (continued) 
 
Investment-grade Obligations – An investment instrument suitable for 
purchase by institutional investors under the prudent person rule. Investment-
grade is restricted to those obligations rated BBB or higher by a rating agency. 
 

-L- 
 
Liquidity – A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into 
cash without a substantial loss of value.  

 
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) – An investment by local 
governments in which their money is pooled as a method for managing local 
funds. 
 

-M- 
 
Mark-to-Market – The process whereby the book value or collateral value of a 
security is adjusted to reflect its current market value. 
 
Market Risk – The risk that the value of a security will rise or decline as a result 
of changes in market conditions. 
 
Market Value – Current market price of a security. 
 
Maturity – The date on which payment of a financial obligation is due. The final 
stated maturity is the date on which the issuer must retire a bond and pay the 
face value to the bondholder. See “Weighted Average Maturity”. 

 
Money Market – The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, 
commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
Money Market Mutual Fund – Mutual funds that invest solely in money market 
instruments (short-term debt instruments, such as Treasury Bills, commercial 
paper, bankers’ acceptances, repos and federal funds). 
 
Mutual Fund – An investment company that pools money and can invest in a 
variety of securities, including fixed-income securities and money market 
instruments. Mutual funds are regulated by the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



-N- 
 
Net Asset Value – The market value of one share of an investment company, 
such as a mutual fund. This figure is calculated by totaling a fund’s assets that 
includes securities, cash, and any accrued earnings, subtracting this from the 
fund’s liabilities and dividing this total by the number of shares outstanding. This 
is calculated once a day based on the closing price for each security in the fund’s 
portfolio. (See below). [(Total assets)-(Liabilities)]/(Number of shares 
outstanding) 
 
No Load Fund – A mutual fund that does not levy a sales charge on the 
purchase of its shares. 
 
Nominal Yield – The stated rate of interest that a bond pays its current owner, 
based on par value of the security. It is also known as the “coupon”, “coupon 
rate”, or “interest rate”. 
 

-O- 
 

Offer – An indicated price at which market participants are willing to sell a 
security or commodity. Also referred to as the “Ask price”. 
 

-P- 
 
Par – Face value or principal value of a bond, typically $1,000 per bond. 
 
Portfolio – Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
Positive Yield Curve – A chart formation that illustrates short-term securities 
having lower yields than long-term securities. 
 
Premium – The amount by which the price paid for a security exceeds the 
security’s par value. 
 
Prime Rate – A preferred interest rate change charged by commercial banks to 
their most creditworthy customers. Many interest rates are keyed to this rate. 
 
Principal – The face value or par value of a debt instrument. Also may refer to 
the amount of capital invested in a given security. 
 
Prospectus – A legal document that must be provided to any prospective 
purchaser of a new securities offering registered with the SEC. This can include 
information on the issuer, the issuer’s business, the proposed use of proceeds, 
the experience of the issuer’s management, and certain financial statements. 

 
 

19



-P- (continued) 
 
Prudent Person Rule – An investment standard outlining the fiduciary 
responsibilities of public investors relating to investment practices. 
 

-Q- 
 
Qualified Public Depositories – A financial institution which does not claim 
exemption from the payment of any sales or compensating use or ad valorem 
taxes under the laws of this state, which has segregated for the benefit of the 
commission eligible collateral having a value of not less than its maximum liability 
and which has been approved by the Public Deposit Protection Commission to 
hold public deposits. 
 

-R- 
 

Rate Of Return – The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price 
or its current market price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond 
the current income return. 
 
Reinvestment Risk – The risk that a fixed-income investor will be unable to 
reinvest income proceeds from a security holding at the same rate of return 
currently generated by that holding. 
 
Repurchase Agreement (repo or RP) – An agreement of one party to sell 
securities at a specified price to a second party and a simultaneous agreement of 
the first party to repurchase the securities at a specified price or at a specified 
later date. 
 
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (Reverse repo) – An agreement of one party 
to purchase securities at a specified price from a second party and a 
simultaneous agreement by the first party to resell the securities at a specified 
price to the second party on demand or at a specified date. 
 
Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act – Applies to all money market 
mutual funds and mandates such funds to maintain certain standards, including a 
13-month maturity limit and a 90-day average maturity on investments, to help 
maintain a constant net asset value of one dollar ($1.00). 
 

-S- 
 

Safekeeping – Holding of assets (e.g., securities) by a financial institution. 
 

Secondary Market – A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding 
issues following the initial distribution. 

 

20



-S- (continued) 
 
Securities & Exchange Commission – Agency created by Congress to protect 
investors in securities transactions by administering securities legislation. 
Serial Bond – A bond issue, usually of a municipality, with various maturity dates 
scheduled at regular intervals until the entire issue is retired. 
 
Sinking Fund – Money accumulated on a regular basis in a separate custodial 
account that is used to redeem debt securities or preferred stock issues. 
 
Swap – Trading one asset for another. 
 

-T- 
 
Term Bond – Bonds comprising a large part or all of a particular issue which 
come due in a single maturity. The issuer usually agrees to make periodic 
payments into a sinking fund for mandatory redemption of term bonds before 
maturity. 
 
Total Return – The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital 
value of the portfolio. For mutual funds, return on an investment is composed of 
share price appreciation plus any realized dividends or capital gains. This is 
calculated by taking the following components during a certain time period. (Price 
Appreciation) + (Dividends paid) + (Capital gains) = Total Return 
 
Treasury Bills – Short-term U.S. government non-interest bearing debt 
securities with maturities of no longer than one year and issued in minimum 
denominations of $10,000. Auctions of three and six month bills are weekly, while 
auctions of one-year bills are monthly. The yields on these bills are monitored 
closely in the money markets for signs of interest rate trends. 
 
Treasury Bonds – Marketable, fixed-interest U.S. government debt securities 
with maturities of more than ten years and issued in minimum denominations of 
$1,000. Treasury bonds make interest payments semi-annually and the income 
that holders receive is only taxed at the federal level. 
 
Treasury Notes – Marketable, U.S. government debt securities with fixed 
interest rates and maturities between 1 to 10 years. Treasury notes can be 
bought either directly from the U.S. government or through banks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



-U- 
 
Uniform Net Capital Rule – SEC Rule 15C3-1 – Securities and Exchange 
Commission requirement that member firms as well as nonmember broker-
dealers in securities maintain a maximum ration of indebtedness to liquid capital 
of 15 to 1: also called net capital rule and net capital ratio. Indebtedness covers 
all money owned to a firm, including margin loans and commitments to purchase 
securities. This is one reason new public issues are spread among members of 
underwriting syndicates. Liquid capital includes cash and assets easily converted 
into cash. 

-V- 
 

Volatility – A degree of fluctuation in the price and valuation of securities. 
 
Volatility Risk Rating – A rating system to clearly indicate the level of volatility 
and other non-credit risks associated with securities and certain bond funds. The 
ratings for bond funds range from those that have extremely low sensitivity to 
changing market conditions and offer the greatest stability of the returns (“aaa” 
by S&P; “V-1” by Fitch) to those that are highly sensitive with currently 
identifiable market volatility risk (“ccc” by S&P; “V-10” by Fitch). 
 

-W- 
 
Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) – The average maturity of all the securities 
that comprise a portfolio. According the SEC Rule 2a-7, the WAM for SEC 
registered money market mutual funds may not exceed 90 days and no one 
security may have a maturity that exceeds 397 days. 
 
When Issued (WI) – A conditional transaction in which an authorized new 
security has not been issued. All “when issued” transactions are settled when the 
actual security is issued. 
 

-Y- 
 
Yield – The current rate of return on an investment security generally expressed 
as a percentage of the security’s current price. 
 
Yield-to-call (YTC) – The rate of return an investor earns from a bond assuming 
the bond is redeemed (called) prior to its nominal maturity date.  
 
Yield Curve – A graphic representation that depicts the relationship at a given 
point in time between yields and maturity for bonds that are identical in every way 
except maturity. A normal yield curve may be alternatively referred to as a 
positive yield curve. 
 
 

22



-Y- (continued) 
 
Yield-to-maturity – The rate of return yielded by a debt security held to maturity 
when both interest payments and the investor’s potential capital gain or loss are 
included in the calculation of return. 
 

-Z- 
 
Zero-coupon Securities – Security that is issued at a discount and makes no 
periodic interest payments. The rate of return consists of gradual accretion of the 
principal of the security and is payable at par upon maturity. 
 

23



ATTACHMENT A 
 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 
 

BROKER/DEALER QUESTIONNAIRE AND CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
Name of Firm: ______________________________  

Address: ___________________________________  

  __________________________________  

Telephone: _________________________________  

Fax:  __________________________________  

Years Established: ___________________________  

Number of Employees: ________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________  
PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE/MANAGER/PARTNER-IN-CHARGE: 
 

Name: _____________________________  Name: __________________________  

Primary Representative(s): 

Title: ______________________________  Title: ___________________________  

Telephone: _________________________  Telephone: ______________________  

Fax: ______________________________  Fax: ____________________________  

Email: _____________________________  Email: __________________________  

Name: _____________________________  Name: __________________________  

Manager/Partner-in-Charge: 

Title: ______________________________  Title: ___________________________  

Telephone: _________________________  Telephone: ______________________  

Fax: ______________________________  Fax: ____________________________  

Email: _____________________________  Email: __________________________  

 

 

24



Note: If a question does not apply to your organization, please place an “N/A” as your 
answer, so that it is not left blank. 

1. Are you a primary dealer in U.S. Government Securities?   Yes  No 

If yes, for how long has your firm been a primary dealer?  Years 

2. What was your firm’s total volume in U.S. Government and Agency Securities last 
year?  

 Firm Wide $    # Transactions  
 (Securities purchase and sold only) 
 

 Local Office $    # Transactions  
 (Including repurchase Agreements) 

3. Which instruments are offered regularly by your local desk? 

 T-Bills    S and L CDs  Instrumentality’s 
 Treasury   BAs (Domestic)  Commercial Paper 
 Notes/Bonds   BAs (Foreign)  Other (Specify) 
 Agencies (Specify)  Bank CDs 

4. Identify the personnel who will be trading with or quoting securities to our 
government’s employees. (Please attach resumes for each person) 

 Name: __________________________  Name: __________________________  

 Title: ___________________________  Title: ___________________________  

 Telephone: ______________________  Telephone: ______________________  

 Fax: ____________________________  Fax: ____________________________  

 CRD Number: ____________________  CRD Number: ____________________  

 Number of Years with Firm: _________  Number of Years with Firm: __________  

 Email: __________________________  Email: __________________________  

5. Have any or your clients ever sustained a loss on a securities transaction arising 
from a misunderstanding or misrepresentation of the risk characteristics of the 
instrument?  

 Yes No 

 If yes, please explain below: 

25



6. Has your firm or any of your employees ever been subject to a regulator or 
state/federal agency investigation for alleged improper, fraudulent, disputable or 
unfair activities related to the sale of securities?  

 Yes No 

 If yes, please explain below: 

 

7. How many and what percentage of your transactions failed: 

 Last Month?   % 

 Last Year?  % 

8. Please explain your normal custody and delivery process. Who audits these 
fiduciary systems? 

 

 

9. Will you provide a faxed and/or electronic copy of the trade ticket, no later than one 
business day after the trade is made? 

 Yes No 

 The following information needs to be included: 

 a. Security Type and Cusip Number 
 b. Issue Date, Maturity Date, Settlement Date, Trade Date, Call Date, Pay Date 
 c. Risk Class, Risk Factor 
 d. Rating 
 e. Coupon Rate 
 f.  Par Value and Price 

10. Does your firm consistently comply with the Federal Reserve Bank’s capital 
adequacy guideline? 

 Yes  No 

 By what factor (1.5x, 2x, etc.) does your firm presently exceed the capital adequacy 
guidelines measure of risk? 

 

 INCLUDE certified documentation of your capital adequacy as measured by Federal 
Reserve standards. 

26



11. Please provide audited financial statements for the most current year and other 
indicators regarding your firm’s capitalization. Audited Financial Statements 
enclosed? 

 Yes  No 

12. Please provide the following: (Note: Do not answer with “see financial report” as that 
will be construed as an unanswered question.) 

 a. Debt/Equity  

 b. Assets (in Millions)  

 c. Net Capital (in Millions)  

 d. Volume of Security Transactions (in Millions)  

 e. Total Liabilities (in Millions)  

 f. Total Stockholders’ Equity (in Millions)  

13. Are you representing a parent corporation or a subsidiary of another corporation? 

 Yes  No 

 If yes, please furnish audited financial statements on your parent corporation as well 
as your subsidiary. Audited financial statements enclosed? 

 Yes  No 

14. Describe the precautions taken by your firm to protect the interest of the public when 
dealing with government agencies as investors. 

 

15. Provide a description of the Capital line and trading limits that support/limit the office 
that would conduct business with our government. 

 

16. ATTACH a copy of your National Association of Securities Dealers Registration. 

17. ATTACH a copy of your State of Texas Securities Commission Registration. 

 

27



18. Do you participate in the Securities Investors Protection Corporation (S.I.P.C.)? 

 Yes  No 

 If no, please explain below: 

 

19. Enclose a complete schedule of fees and charges for various transactions. Schedule 
of fees and charges enclosed? 

 Yes  No 

20. Do you give perfected security interest in securities under repurchase agreements? 

 Yes  No 

21. Please identify (at least five for each trader you include in this questionnaire and 
certification) your most directly comparable public sector clients preferably in our 
geographical area. 

 Trader Name: 
 Entity Contact Person Telephone Client Since 

1.
 

    

2.     

3.     

4.     

5.     
 
Trader Name: 

 Entity Contact Person Telephone Client Since 

1.
 

    

2.     

3.     

4.     

5.     

28



 

Broker/Dealers are evaluated by the answers given on this questionnaire. Be sure to 
complete each question to your fullest ability and return the request by the due date in 
order for your company to be considered. 

The City’s Investment Policy has been included in the packet. The representative 
assigned to the account must acknowledge that they have received, read and 
understand the Policy by signing the Texas Public Funds Investment Act Certification by 
Dealer Form included in the packet. 

 Certified documentation of your capital adequacy enclosed. 

Checklist: 

 Audited financial statement enclosed. 

 Copy of your National Association of Securities Dealer Registration enclosed. 

 Copy of your State of Texas Securities Commission Registration enclosed. 

 Schedule of fees and charges enclosed. 

29



ATTACHMENT B 
 

City of Texas City, Texas 
Texas Public Funds Investment Act 

Certification by Dealer 

This certification is executed on behalf of ______________________________  
(the Investor) and ________________________________ (the Dealer) pursuant 
to the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Government Code, Texas Codes 
Annotated (the Act) in connection with investment transactions conducted between the 
Investor and Dealer. 

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Dealer hereby certifies on behalf of the 
Dealer that: 

1. The Dealer Qualified Representative is duly authorized to execute this Certification 
on behalf of the Dealer, and 

2. The Dealer Qualified Representative has received and reviewed the Investment Policy 
furnished by the Investor, and 

3. The Dealer has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to 
preclude investment transactions conducted between the Dealer and the Investor 
that are not authorized by the entity's investment policy, except to the extent that this 
authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the entity's entire 
portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards. 

Dealer Qualified Representative 

Signature 

 Name (Printed) 

Title 

Date 

30



Attachment C 
 
 
RECOMMENDED SPONSORS OF INVESTMENT TRAINING 
 

• Government Finance Officers Association of Texas (GFOAT) 
• Government Treasurers Association of Texas (GTOT) 
• Texas Municipal League (TML) 
• University of North Texas (UNT) 
• State of Texas 

 

31



ATTACHMENT D 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

QUALIFIED BROKERS/DEALERS 

 

Hilltop Securities      Merrill Lynch 
A Hilltop Holdings Company    2100 Ross Avenue, Suite 1100 
3 Riverway, Suite 1400     Dallas, Texas 75201 
Houston, TX 77056      Phone: 800-574-1610 
Phone: 832-681-4601 
Stuart Ford 
Erle Hoppe 
        
      
 
 
 
Wells Fargo Advisors     SWBC Investment Services, LLC 
2700 Post Oak Blvd., Ste. 800    15106 Cranbourne 
Houston, Texas 77056       Houston, Texas 77062 
Phone: 713-599-6700     Phone: 281-851-6508  
        Paul Grover 
       

 

 

 

 

32



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (a)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Building Regulations: Construction
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: David Zacherl, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.
2023-28, amending Chapter 150 ‘Building Regulations; Construction” related to
additional authority regarding substandard structures.   
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
There has been a change in titles of personnel. There is a new position titled director of
municipal services filled by the former director of community development and a new
director of community development assigned.

Currently, Section 150.038 Emergency Demolitions assigns requirements of the
Ordinance to the fire marshal, director of community development and the chief
building official.

We are proposing to add the new position director of municipal services to the list of
personnel and maintain the director of community development as currently assigned.
The intent is there must be a triumvirate of these four officials in concurrence before a
structure may be abated by emergency demolition.  
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Fire Chief recommends approval of the proposed addition of the director of municipal services to the
Ordinance.
 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: No
Amount Requested: 0
Source of Funds: 0
Account #: 0
Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact to the proposed Ordinance amendment. 



There is no fiscal impact to the proposed Ordinance amendment. 
 

Attachments
Ordinance Draft, Third Reading 



Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 23-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, TITLE XV - LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 

150, “BUILDING REGULATIONS; CONSTRUCTION”, REPEALING ALL 

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A 

SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND 

ADOPTION. 
                                                                                                                                                  

 
 WHEREAS, there is a need to amend The Code of Ordinances of the City of Texas City, 

Texas, Title XV - Land Usage, Chapter 150, Building Regulations; Construction, to update 

information contained in the Code, and 
  
  WHEREAS, there is a need to clarify the additional authority regarding substandard 

buildings, and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon recommendation of the Fire Chief and Fire Marshal and full review and 

consideration of all matters related and attendant thereto, the City Commission determines that 

amending Title XV - Land Usage, Chapter 150, Building Regulations; Construction will promote 

the health, safety, and general welfare of the City and the safe, orderly, and healthful development 

of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission determines that amending Title XV – Land Usage, 

Chapter 150, Building Regulations; Construction will promote the health, safety, morals, and 

general welfare of the City and the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct 

and are incorporated herein as findings of fact, and  
 
 Section 2.  The City Commission hereby further finds and determines that the rules, 

regulations, terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this ordinance are reasonable and 

necessary to promote health, safety, morals, or general welfare and the safe, orderly, and healthful 

development of the municipality, and  
 
 Section 3.  The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Section 150.038 is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 
§150.038 Emergency Demolitions. 

 

(A)   Emergency arising from sudden acts or occurrences. 



Page 2 of 5 

 
(1)  Where it appears to the fire marshal, director of community development, director 

of municipal services, or chief building official or their designees, that due to 

structural defects or conditions arising from, but not limited to, fire, accident, water 

damage, vandalism, or other sudden act or occurrence thereby threatening the 

structural integrity of a building, there is clear and imminent danger to the life, 

safety or property of any person unless the building is immediately demolished, 

either of these aforesaid officials shall declare its immediate vacation and 

demolition regardless of the date of construction. The concurrence of the other two 

other aforesaid officials shall be required prior to execution of the commencement 

of the demolition. Such concurrence shall include a determination that under the 

circumstances no other abatement procedure is reasonably available except 

demolition. 
 
 (2) Notice that the structure has been determined to be a clear and imminent danger 

 to life, safety or property of any person shall be issued: 
 

a.  By placard affixed to the property or by stake driven into the ground. It shall 

be unlawful for any person to remove the posted notice without written permission 

from the fire marshal and no unauthorized person shall enter the building for any 

purpose. 
 

(3)  For residential structures, demolition should commence within seventy-two (72) 

hours after the notice or as soon thereafter as is reasonable and as soon as possible for any 

commercial structure(s) after consideration of any environmental issue(s) and/or 

compliance with other applicable law(s).  
 

(B)  Emergency arising from long-term deterioration. 
 

(1)  Where it appears to the fire marshal, director of community development, director 

of municipal services or chief building official or their designees, that structural 

defects or conditions arising from long-term deterioration threaten the structural 

integrity of a building such that there is clear and imminent danger to the life, safety 

or property of any person unless the building is immediately demolished, either of 

these aforesaid officials shall declare its immediate vacation and demolition. The 

concurrence of the other two other aforesaid officials shall be required prior to the 

execution of the commencement of the demolition. Such concurrence shall include 

a determination that under the circumstances no other abatement procedure is 

reasonably available except demolition. Upon a determination that an emergency 

demolition is warranted by either (A) or (B) above, the following actions shall be 

taken: 
 
 (2)  Notice that the structure has been determined to be a clear and imminent danger to 

  life, safety or property of any person shall be issued: 
 



Page 3 of 5 

a.  By placard affixed to the property or by stake driven into the ground. It shall 

be unlawful for any person to remove the posted notice without written permission 

of the Director of Engineering & Planning or their designee director of 

development services and no unauthorized person shall enter the building for any 

purpose; 
 
b. Via hand-delivery to the owner(s) of record per the Galveston County 

Appraisal District records only if the owner(s) resides within Galveston County; or 
 
c.  If hand-delivery to the owner(s) of record per the Galveston County 

Appraisal District records for owner(s) residing within Galveston County is not 

able to be accomplished after reasonable efforts are made, Notice may be given in 

whatever means are available to afford the owner(s) with such Notice as determined 

by the City Attorney; and 
 
d.  By email to the Mayor. 

 
(3)  Within seventy-two (72) hours of notice, a plan of action to stabilize the structure, 

secure the structure, and/or bring the structure up to all current adopted City Codes 

and Ordinances must be developed and presented to the fire marshal, the director 

of community development, director of municipal services or chief building 

official. Said plan of action shall then be approved by the Director of Engineering 

& Planning or their designee.  
 

a. If the plan is approved, said plan must be implemented within forty-eight 

(48) hours of approval or as soon thereafter as is reasonable and as soon as possible 

for any commercial structure(s) after consideration of any environmental issue(s) 

and/or compliance with other applicable law(s). If stabilization and securing of the 

structure is begun within forty-eight (48) hours of approval, the structure shall be 

scheduled for the next available hearing before the Texas City Municipal Court of 

Record for presentation of a scope of work with dates certain for completion of 

rehabilitation, or 
 
b.  If the plan is determined to be infeasible by the fire marshal, the director of 

community development, director of municipal services or chief building official 

the required affidavits shall be executed for commencement of the emergency 

demolition or if there is a pending case regarding the structure in the Texas City 

Municipal Court of Record, an Order from the Court authorizing the emergency 

demolition.  
 
c. The emergency demolition process shall commence not later than ninety-

six (96) weekday hours, exclusive of weekends and holidays, after the last required 

written concurrence is made. 
 
d.  After execution of the emergency demolition, the officials responsible shall: 
 



Page 4 of 5 

(1) File copies of the affidavits or Court Order in the real property 

records of Galveston County, Texas; and 
 
(2) Provide notice to the owner(s) and lienholders/mortgagees of 

record. 
 

e.  The historical designation, location or significance of a building or structure 

shall not prohibit, prevent, or stay an emergency demolition of a dangerous building 

or structure determined to be a clear and imminent danger to the life, safety or 

property of any person. Demolition shall be the remedy of last resort and if the 

structure can be vacated and secured and feasibly repaired or the condition 

remedied so that the structure shall no longer be an imminent danger it shall first 

be ordered. 
 
f. The city, as a home-rule city, adopts the foregoing emergency abatement 

action pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOV’T CODE § 214.002, and the powers of self-rule 

granted by the voters under the City Charter as authorized by the Constitution of 

the state. 
 

(4)  The City has the same authority to assess expenses incurred under this section as it 

has to assess expenses under TEX. LOCAL GOV’T CODE § 214.001(n).  A lien is created 

under this section in the same manner that a lien is created under TEX. LOCAL GOV’T CODE 

§ 214.001(n) and is subject to the same conditions as a lien created under that section. 
 

 Section 4.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 
 
Section 5.   It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City, Texas, that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this 

Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 

should be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 

sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 

the City Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, 

clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
Section 6.  All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City, Texas, are expressly 

saved as to any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or 

development, which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to 

such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court 

or not, under such Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted 

until final disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 7.  This is the third of three readings as required by the Charter. 



Page 5 of 5 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon the passage, approval 

and publication following this reading as required by the Charter and law. 
 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of __________, 2023. 
 
 
       _________________________  
       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  
       City of Texas City, Texas 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Rhomari Leigh        Kyle L. Dickson  
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Ord 13-52        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of a request to amend the fiscal year 2022-2023 budget.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
A budget amendment is needed to transfer funds from the General Fund (fund 101) to the
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (fund 602).  These two funds work together for the
purchase of capital equipment and machinery.  Each Fund 101 department needing capital
equipment purchases that equipment through Fund 602 and then makes annual payments
from their General Fund budget so that when the equipment needs to be replaced, funds are
available for that purpose.  When the FY 22/23 Budget was adopted in September 2022, the
General Fund departmental contributions to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund were
not included.  The General Fund unassigned fund balance is projected to be sufficient to
afford the transfer between funds at this time.  The transfer amount is $2,000,000.00.

Funds will come from the General Fund's unassigned fund balance. 

RECOMMENDATION
Budget Amendment:

General Fund-Fund 101
Transfer to Other Funds increase of  $2,000,000.00

Capital Equipment Replacement Fund-Fund 602
Transfer from General Fund increase of $2,000,000.00
 

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (c)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of a request to amend the fiscal year 2022-2023 budget to appropriate
funds for purchase of EMS and Fire equipment through a grant from Southeast Texas
Housing Finance Corporation (SETH).

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Texas City Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and Texas City Fire Department applied to
Southeast Texas Housing Finance Corporation (SETH) for funding the purchase of King
Vision video laryngoscope for intubations, automated external defibrillators (AED) for new
engines, and high angle/confined space rescue equipment.  SETH approved the applications
and awarded a total of $10,000.

A budget amendment is required for the receipt of funds from SETH and then for the purchase
of the equipment.

 

RECOMMENDATION
Budget Amendment:

SETH Fund (229) Fire Department (202):
EMS equipment       $5,000.00
Fire equipment        $5,000.00
Grant Revenue      ($10,000.00)
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
SETH grant 







   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Ord 13-52        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of a request to amend the fiscal year 2022-2023 budget to accept and
appropriate the Community Development Block Grant Mitigation funds for drainage
improvements and shelter expansion projects.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The City was awarded funding from Community Development Block Grant Regional Mitigation
Program (CDBG MIT-MOD) application 2022-100137-RMP in the amount of $8,012,700.00. 
The Texas General Land Office (GLO) will administer this grant.  Vendor invoices will be
approved by GLO, funds sent to the City, and then vendors get paid.

In September 2022, the City of Texas City was allocated funds under the CDBG MIT-MOD
Program by the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) on behalf of the Texas General
Land Office (GLO). These funds must fund projects that reduce local risks, foster long-term
community resilience that is forward-looking and encourage the prioritization of local
investments with local impacts in risk reduction for hurricanes, tropical storms and
depressions, and flooding.  Although funds were allocated in September 2022, the grant was
not formally awarded to the City until June 20, 2023.  Some preliminary work, i.e. engineering
and planning, has already been done under contracts Commission approved in October and
December 2022 with grant consulting/administration firm GrantWorks, Inc. and engineering
firms, KSA Engineering and Amani Engineering.

A budget amendment is needed to create a new fund to account for the grant revenues and
project expenditures.

Information is attached.

RECOMMENDATION
Budget Amendment:

CDBG MIT-MOD (Fund 245):
Drainage Improvements                       $3,784,354.00
Shelter Expansion Projects                  $4,228,346.00
Grant Revenue (CDBG MIT-MOD)     ($8,012,700.00)
 

 



Fiscal Impact

Attachments
MIT-MOD grant 





   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Ord 13-52        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of a request to amend the fiscal year 2022-2023 budget to appropriate
funds from Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds established under the
American Rescue Plan Act for exterior repairs at the Moore Memorial Public Library.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The United States Department of the Treasury has allocated the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSLFR) under the American Rescue Plan Act.  These funds are to
be used for specific listed eligible uses in the following categories: public health and economic
impacts, premium pay, revenue loss, and investments in infrastructure.  The City of Texas
City has been awarded $10,309,444.00.  The funds must be obligated by December 31, 2024
and expended by December 31, 2026.

Some of the funding has already been allocated and is being spent on assistance to
households and utilities infrastructure.  

This request is for funding of exterior building repairs at the Moore Memorial Public Library,
not to exceed $500,000.00.  See attached listing of items.

Funding will come from the American Rescue Plan's unassigned fund balance.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Budget Amendment:

American Rescue Plan - CSLFR Fund  (Fund 243):
Library building repairs               $500,000.00
Unassigned fund balance         ($500,000.00)

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Library repairs 





   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (f)        
Meeting Date: 09/06/2023  
Amend fiscal year 2022-2023 budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action, amending the City's fiscal year 2022-2023 budget to
appropriate funds to remodel the Municipal Court front desk area. (Finance)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Per Municipal Court, the purpose, scope of work performed, and technical needs in the
customer service/cashier area have changed significantly since the building was originally
constructed.  The remodel in the amount of $45,596.91, will allow for a safer, more efficient
and ergonomic workflow area.

Funding will be provided by the Municipal Court Building Efficiency Fund unassigned fund
balance.
 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Budget Amendment:
Municipal Court Efficiency Fund (Fund 235); Municipal Court (205):
Land and Building Improvements   $46,000.00
Unassigned fund balance              ($46,000.00)

Fiscal Impact


	Agenda
	AI 6891 Municipal Court Clerk Certification Presentation
	AI 69566956
	       ATT_Staff Report
	Slide Number 1
	MEMBERSHIP RATES & FEES
	Hours of Operation
	Stages SC 2.20 Indoor Cycle
	Precor SCL 835 Stair Climber�
	 3 YEAR ACTIVE MEMBERSHIP PROFILE
	MEMBERSHIP BREAKDOWN
	MEMBERSHIP PROFILE�Resident/Non-Resident Breakdown
	Summer Intern:  Chelsea Nguyen
	Intern in Action!
	Lowry Fitness Center �Member of the Month
	Slide Number 12

	AI 69576957
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 6924 MUNICIPAL COURT FRONT DESK RENOVATION
	       ATT_Quote
	AI 6945 approval of payment to South Point Estates (Parcels, 14, 16 and 18) for sanitary sewer easement.
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 14 Email Request
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 14 Signed Easement Agreement
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 14 Signed ROE Agreement
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 16 Email Request
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 16 Signed Easement Agreement
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 16 Signed ROE Agreement
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 18 Email Request
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 18 Signed Easement Agreement
	       ATT_South Point Estates Parcel 18 Signed ROE Agreement
	AI 6946 2022 /2023 Public Works Trucks Purchase
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI 6948 Bid # 2023-436 Lift Station 30 Improvements Project
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	AI 6947 authorizing the submission of nomination (s) to the Galveston County Appraisal District Board of Directors
	       ATT_GCAD Nomination Letter
	AI 6949 Consider approval of the City of Texas City’s Investment Policy.
	       ATT_CTC Investment Policy
	City of Texas City Investment Policy 20170315.pdf
	INVESTMENT POLICY-TABLE OF CONTENTS
	INVESTMENT POLICY-AMENDED 2015 - clean
	UInvestment Policy
	II. USCOPE
	III. UINVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
	USafety
	ULiquidity
	UYield

	IV. USTANDARDS OF CARE
	UDelegation of Investment Authority
	UDelegation of Investment Authority (continued)
	UInvestment Training
	UStandard of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest
	UStandard of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest (continued)
	UPrudence

	UInternal Controls/Annual Compliance Audit
	V. USUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
	1. Direct Obligations of the United States Government: U.S. Treasury Bills, U.S. Treasury Notes, and U.S. Treasury Bonds as well as Bonds or other interest bearing obligations for which the principal and interest are guaranteed by the full faith and c...
	2. Time Certificates of Deposit, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or its successor, in state or national banks. Any deposits exceeding FDIC insurance limits shall be collateralized at 102% of the face amount of the Certifica...
	3. Repurchase Agreements with a defined termination date of 90 days or less collateralized by securities listed in 1 above. Collateral must have a minimum market value of 102% of the repurchase agreement, and must be held by the custodian bank or othe...

	VI. UFINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS
	UDepository
	UDelivery vs. Payment


	VII. USAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY
	VIII. UINVESTMENT PARAMETERS
	UMaximum Maturities
	UDiversification

	IX. UREPORTING
	X. UPERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	XI. UPOLICY ADOPTION
	UAnnual Review and Adoption of Investment Policy


	INVESTMENT POLICY GLOSSARY
	UGLOSSARY

	Attachment A BROKER-DEALER QUESTIONNAIRE
	Attachment B BROKER-DEALER CERTIFICATION LETTER
	Attachment C
	ATTACHMENT D - clean 20170303

	AI 6885 Building Regulations: Construction
	       ATT_Ordinance Draft, Third Reading
	AI 6950 Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
	AI 6951 Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
	       ATT_SETH grant
	AI 6952 Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
	       ATT_MIT-MOD grant
	AI 6953 Amend the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
	       ATT_Library repairs
	AI 6955 Amend fiscal year 2022-2023 budget

